
, 

eligible for special education services. Mary Magee Quinn, Robert B. Rutherford, Peter E. 

Leone, David M. Osher & David M. Poirier, Youth With Disabilities in Juvenile Corrections: A 

National Survey, 71 COUNCIL FOR EXCEPTIONAL CHILDREN 339, 340 (2005). At WGYCF, only 

46 youth-less than 4 % of the entire population of approximately 1200 youth-are currently 

identified as eligible for special education services. In 2006, MDE documented that WGYCF 

identified only 2-4 % of its population as eligible for special education services. Since then.. 

'MDE has failed to ensure that WGYCF modified its ChildFind procedures to ensure the 

identification of all eligible youth incarcerated at WGYCF. 

------------------:-- .------------c-----
210. Many youth at WGYCF require individualized related services such as psychological 

services to benefit from special education, but WGYCF provides no such services. In 2006, 

MDE documented that WGYCF provided inadequate related services to students with 

disabilities. "MDE noted that the only related services available were·counseling, and even these 

services were offered so infrequently that they were unlikely to meet the educational needs of 

students with disabilities. Four years later, WGYCF has not increased its related services 

offering. To the contrary, the population of the facility has expanded, and WGYCF still relies on 

the same part-time contractual service providers that"MDE found inadequate when the facility 

housed significantly fewer youth. The quality and frequency of related services has actually 

decreased since 2006. 

211. WGYCF does not provide individualized special education services for youth at the 

facility in the least restrictive environment. Most students who are determined eligible for special 

education are placed together in segregated classes, Tegardless of their individual disabilities or 

educational levels. 
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212. Youth with cognitive and learning disabilities housed in protective custody are barred 

from accessing any educational services. WGYCF provides these youth with packets of 

worksheets, regardless of their individual educational needs, and denies them access to a 

qualified teacher and/or education professional who could provide instruction and feedback. 'The 

packets are not delivered on a regular schedule, but usually are given to youth every two to three 

weeks. For those youth who either cannot read or who lack the cognitive functioning to teach 

themselves, the educational "packets" are meaningless. These youth gain no education benefit 

from merely receiving packets that they cannot read or understand. This fai lure to accommodate 

the disabilities of youth who live with disabilities and who require protective custody violates 

federal law . 

213. Despite having clear notice ofWGYCF's IDEA and 504 violations, MDE has failed to 

promulgate and implement policies, practices and procedures to ensure that students with 

disabilities who are incarcerated at WGYCF receive the services to which they are entitled under 

federal law . 

214. GEO and WOCA fail to comply with their obligations pursuant to state law to provide 

educational services to "provide any juvenile offender housed in the facility with continuing 

education tlrroughout his incarceration which leads to the presentation of a high school diploma 

or General Education Development (OED) equivalent." 

215. The deprivations of educational services suffered by the WOYCF youth described below 

illustrate how the Defendants' policy and practice failing to comply with federal and state 

education laws place unnamed class members at a substantial risk of irreparable harm. 

JAMARlO BRADY 
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216. Plaintiff Jamario Brady has been in WGYCF for three years and has never attended 

classes. He entered WGYCF at the age of fifteen and is now nineteen. For most afhis time at 

WGYCF, Jamario has been housed in protective custody, where he has received occasional 

packets of worksheets instead of instruction by a teacher, and no help or feedback on his work. 

217.. Before his incarceration, Jamario was identified as a youth in need of special education 

and related services and received such services at the last school he attended in accordance with 

an Individualized Education Plan (IEP). Jamario has difficulty reading and writing. He also has 

behavioral issues that interfere with his ability to learn. WGYCF has failed to identify Jamario as 

I------a youtheIfgiole for sPecial education and has failed to provide him with special education and 

related services. 

COZVSCOTI 

218. Before his incarceration, Plaintiff Cozy Scott was identified as a youth in need of special 

education and related services and received special education at the last school be attended in 

accordance with an IEP. However, in his years at WGYCF, be bas not been identified as eligible 

for special education. As a result, be has received no special education or related services. 

219. Cozy was incarcerated at WGYCF in 2008 and then again starting in February 0[2009. 

Around the second week of October 2010, Cozy was enrolled in scbool for the first time at 

WGYCF. About two weeks later, he was removed from school. Since then, he has not been re­

enrolled in school and has not received alternative fonns of education. The judge who sentenced 

Cozy ordered him to earn his GED during the term of his incarceration. Under his current 

circwnstances, he cannot obtain aGED. 

LAMARCUS CURRY 
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220. PlaintiffLamarcus Curry is twenty-one years old and has severe difficulties reading and 

spelling. He recently tested at a first-grade reading level. Before his incarceration, he was 

identified as a youth in need of special education and related services and received such services 

at the last school he attended in accordance with an IEP. 

221. When Lamarcus arrived at WGYCF, he requested to enroll in school. WGYCF placed 

Lamarcus in a regular classroom setting without first administering an appropriate test to 

evaluate his abilities and needs. Because he was not able to learn in that setting, he told both his 

teacher and the principal of the WGYCF scbool about his special education status and his 

-----~= -=---;-;-- ---
inability to read or write. They gave him no supplemental assistance or services. When be was 

moved to a different zone, he waited one full month before being placed back in school. He told 

his new teacher that he could not read or write and had previously been placed in special 

education classes, but, again, received no special education or related services. Over one month 

ago, Lamarcus was withdrawn from school; he was told that he could not attend school because 

the facility lacks the appropriate teachers for him. Lamarcus has not attended school in over one 

month. 

FREDRlCK WHITE 

222. Before entering WGYCF, Plaintiff Fredrick White was identified as a youth in need of 

special education and related services and received such services in the last school he attended in 

accordance with an IEP. Fredrick entered MDOC custody at the age of eighteen and is now 

twenty. 

223. Fredrick White has lived in protective custody at WGYCF since January 2010. Since 

entering protective custody. he has not been allowed to attend classes and has received no 

instruction from a teacher; instead, he receives packets of worksheets every one to three weeks. 
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Fredrick receives no help in completing the worksheets and never receives any feedback on the 

work he submits. The worksheets are not individualized for him and are not calculated to help 

him receive educational benefit and earn his GED. WGYCF has not provided him with 

individualized special education or related services. 

ERIC BALL 

224. Plaintiff Eric Ball was previously identified as a youth in need of special education and 

related services and received such services at his last school accordance with an IEP before, 

entering prison. Eric entered MOOC custody at the age of nineteen and is now twenty. WGYCF 

fias fiilled to identify Eric as a youth eligible for special education and has denied him special 

education and related services. 

225. Eric has severe trouble reading and writing. He currently lives in protective custody 

where he receives packets of worksheets every one to three weeks in lieu of attending school. No 

one helps Eric complete the worksheets or provides any instruction or feedback on his work. He 

has received no educational benefit during his time at WGYCF. 

EXHAUSTION 

226. The named Plaintiffs have exhausted all available administrative remedies .. 

CLAIMS FOR RELIEF 

First Claim 

Eighth Amendment Violations: Dangerously Violent Conditions of Confinement 

By subjecting Plaintiffs to dangerously violent conditions of confinement and by exhibiting 

deliberate indifference to Plaintiffs' substantial risk of serious physical injury as a result of these 
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conditions Defendants OEO, WGCA, Tripp, Vinson, and Epps violate the Plaintiffs' rights to be 

free from cruel and unusual punisbment under the Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments to the 

United States Constitution. 

Second Claim 

Eighth Amendment Violations: Protection from Harm and Deliberate Indifference to 
Excessive use of Force 

By exhibiting deliberate indifference to the substantial risk ofharm Plaintiffs face as a result of 

WGYCF's policy and practice of subjecting youth to excessive use of force and by failing to 

protect the Plaintiffs from this harm, Defendants GEO, WGCA, Tripp, Vinson, and Epps violate 

the Plaintiffs' rights to be free from cruel and unusual punishment under the Eighth and 

Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution. 

Third Claim 

Eighth Amendment Violations: Punitive Isolation 

By subjecting Plaintiffs to punitive isolation without penological justification and for the purpose 

of inflicting wanton.and unnecessary discomfort, pain, and humiliation, and by lmowingly 

allowing this practice to continue, Defendants WGCA, GEO, Tripp, Vinson, Kern, and Epps 

violate Plaintiffs' rights to be free from cruel and unusual punishment under the Eigl;lth and 

Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution. 

Fourth Claim 

Eighth Amendment Violations: Deliberate Indifference to Plaintiffs' 
Serious Medical and Mental Health Needs 

By failing to provide constitutionally adequate medical and mental care to address the Plaintiffs' 

serious medical and mental health needs and by allowing the policies and practices of providing 
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grossly substandard healthcare to continue, Defendants HALLe, Walnut Grove Correctional 

Authority, GEO, Tripp, Kern, Hogue, and Epps violate the Plaintiffs' rights under the Eighth and 

Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution. 

Fifth Claim 

IDEA Violations: Denial of Free and Appropriate Public Education 

By failing to provide WGYCF youth who qualify as students with disabilities a free appropriate 

public education, Defendants GEO, WGCA, Burnham, Tripp, Kern, and Epps violate the 

Plaintiffs' rights under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act, §§ 1400 et seq .. 

-------- -----. --. ------;S'cix-:th:-:C"'lann-c·- ------.. -- --_._._-- -

Section 504 and ADA Violations: Unlawful Denials of Educational Services 

By failing to ensure that WGYCF youth with disabilities have equal access to educational 

services, Defendants WGCA, GEO, Tripp, Kern, Buntham, and Epps violate the Plaintiffs' rights 

under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. § 794 and Title Il of the . 

Seventh Claim 

State Law Violation: Denial of Educational Services 

By failing to provide youth at WGYCF with continuing education throughout their incarceration 

and by failing to allow WGYCF youth to earn a high scbool diploma or a GED, Defendants 

Tripp, Kern, GEO, and WGCA violate the Plaintiffs rights under Miss. Code Ann. §47-5-949 

(2010). 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiffs pray that this Honorable Court grant the following relief: 

a. Declare that the acts and omissions oftbe Defendants violate Plaintiff's constitutional 

rights and federal law; 
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b. Enter a preliminary and pennanent injunction requiring the Defendants, their agents. 

subordinates, employees and all others acting in concert with them to cease their unconstitutional 

and unlawful practices and to remedy their violations of the Constitution and the laws; 

c. Award to the Plaintiffs reasonable costs and attorney's fees; and 

d. Grant the Plaintiff such other relief as the Court may deem just and proper. 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITfED, this the 15th day 

--.------- --_. -----
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